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To:  Jorge Torres, Director of Building & Life Safety 

From:  Elliot Eldridge, Assistant Building Official, Building & Life Safety Department 

Subject: PC 23-011 (2201 N Chestnut Townhomes) 

SDC: Round 1  

Date:  September 18, 2023 

General Comments: 

After review of the submitted documents for round 1, and after review of the 
applicant’s response letter to the “Preliminary Staff Development Committee Review” 
dated November 16, 2022, the Building & Life Safety Department have no additional 
comments prior to permit submittal. 
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Planning & Community 
Development Dept. Review  
December 8, 2023 

 
REVIEW ROUND 1 

Project: 2201 N Chestnut Townhomes 
2201 N Chestnut Ave, 315 W. Rand Rd. 

Case Number: PC 23-011 

General: 
 

7. The following zoning approvals have been requested as based on the plans. Please verify: 
a) Preliminary Plat of Subdivision to subdivide the property into two lots (Final Plat of Subdivision approval to 

come at a future date). 
b) Rezoning of Lot 2 lot from the R-1 District to the R-6 District and Lot 1 from the R-1 District to the B-2 District. 
c) Amendment to Comprehensive Plan to classify Lot 1 as Commercial and Lot 2 as Moderate Density Multi-

Family 
d) Special Use Permit to allow Minor Auto Repair on Lot 1 
e) Variation to Chapter 28 of the Municipal Code, Section 5.1-6.4a.1, to allow a 19.9’ front yard setback 

(west) for Lot 2 where code requires a minimum setback of 25’. 
f) Variation to Chapter 28 of the Municipal Code, Section 5.1-6.4a.2, to allow a 17’ side yard setback 

(north/northeast) for Lot 2 where code requires a minimum setback of 21.3’.  
g) Variation to Chapter 28 of the Municipal Code, Section 5.1-11.3a., to allow a 6.8’ front yard setback (west) 

for Lot 1 where code requires a minimum setback of 25’. 
h) Variation to Chapter 28 of the Municipal Code, Section 5.1-11.3b, to allow a 20’ side yard setback 

(southwest) where code requires a minimum setback of approximately 21.3’. 
i) Variation to Chapter 28 of the Municipal Code, Section 10.2-8, to allow a 22’ wide drive aisle where code 

requires a 24’ wide minimum width. 
j) Variation to Chapter 28 of the Municipal Code, Section 10.2-12.2, to waive the requirement to provide a 

photometric plan. 
k) Variation to Chapter 28 of the Municipal Code, Section 6.12-1.3, to waive the requirement to provide a 

traffic and parking study. 
l) Variation to Chapter 28 of the Municipal Code, Section 6.15-1.2b, to waive the requirement for certain 

landscape islands on Lot 1. 
 
Additional variations may be required depending upon your response to certain comments and review of the 
revised plans. 
 

8. Will the townhome building or site feature any sustainable/green design elements? Please update the project 
narrative to include information on any sustainable/green design elements. 
 

9. The justification for variations document shall be revised to address the specific standards of approval as outlined 
in the code. Each requested variation shall include a separate response to the standards for approval as outlined 
below. Please include a response to the newly identified variations above: 

 
• The proposed use will not alter the essential character of the locality and will be compatible with existing 

uses and zoning of nearby property; and 
• The plight of the owner is due to unique circumstances, which may include the length of time the subject 

property has been vacant as zoned; and 
• The proposed variation is in harmony with the spirit and intent of this Chapter; and 
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• The variance requested is the minimum variance necessary to allow reasonable use of the property. 
 
10. No Plat of Survey was included within the submission. Please provide a Plat of Survey and a legal description 

for the subject property in Microsoft Word format. 
 

11. Please ensure that all plans and/or studies to be resubmitted as a result of the Round 1 Department review 
comments include a revision date. 

 
12. The resubmittal shall be provided within a flash drive/USB, which shall include the response to these comments 

along with all revised plan sets and documents. In addition, one full sized hard copy of all revised plan sets and 
documents must also be provided. 

 
Townhome Use/Auto Repair Use: 
13. You’re encouraged to organize and hold a neighborhood meeting well in advance of any Plan Commission 

hearing on the project. 
 

14. The townhome building is proposed on one lot. Please confirm that it each townhome unit is not intended to be 
located on their own separate platted lot. 
 

15. Chapter 29 of the Municipal Code requires the submission of a draft of the Declarations that will govern the 
townhomes. Please be aware that this document will be required at time of Final Plat of Subdivision application. 

 
16. Impact Fee’s will be required at time of building permit for the residential portion of the development, in 

accordance with Village Policy. Linkage Fee’s will be required at time of building permit for the residential 
portion as per the Inclusionary Housing Ordinance. 

 
17. The existing auto-repair use will need to be sensitive to the proposed townhomes on Lot 2. Any zoning approval 

of the auto-repair SUP will be conditional upon the owner/operator on Lot 1 to work with the Village to address 
any noise or odor issues to the satisfaction of the Village. Inoperable motor vehicle storage on Lot 1 shall be 
prohibited, and the automobiles shall not be stored on Lot 1 beyond the time reasonable to complete repairs, 
which shall be to the discretion of the Village. Exterior work on vehicles shall be prohibited. 

 
18. Please be aware that outdoor storage of parts or equipment (tires, etc.) shall be prohibited. Please confirm that 

no outdoor storage shall occur on Lot 1 and any exterior storage will occur within the fenced enclosure area at 
the southeast of the building. 

 
Streetscape/Landscaping: 
19. The parkway along Rand Road must be restored in its entirety. The area proposed to remain as striped asphalt 

shall be removed and restored as parkway. Additionally, the landscape island at the northwest of the area must 
be incorporated into the parking lot. 
 

20. Please explore shifting the driveway location on Lot 2 slightly further north to allow for a larger landscape area 
between the subject property and the single-family home to the south, which area could accommodate evergreen 
trees for year-round screening. 

 
Arlington Performance Site: 
21. Please reach out to IDOT to determine what access restrictions may be required and provide an update on said 

correspondence. 
 

22. What is the long-term plan for the billboard and its removal? 
 

23. The neighboring property to the southeast has been designed to provide for future cross access. Any approval 
of the proposed subdivision shall require, upon the request of the Village, for Lot 1 to implement a reciprocal 
cross access agreement with the property to the southeast. Said easement would only be required if/when the 
billboard is removed or Lot 1 is redeveloped, whichever shall come first. 
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24. The Arlington Performance site requires two ADA compliant parking stalls.  

 
25. Please provide a detail for the proposed fence separating Lot 1 and Lot 2 (height, materials, etc.), along with 

the proposed dumpster enclosures on Lot 1 and Lot 2 (height, materials, etc.). 
 

26. Provide a detail for the proposed retaining walls. 
 
27. Please evaluate the ability for the fence proposed at the rear of Lot 1 (at the northeast of the 6 newly proposed 

parking stalls). The retaining wall is not shown on the landscape plan and the fence is not shown on the engineering 
plans. 

 
Townhome Site: 
28. Will all mechanical equipment for Lot 2 be located in “Meter Room”? Please indicate the location of any proposed 

ground mounted mechanical equipment (generator, HVAC equipment, utility pedestals/meters, transformer, etc.) 
on the site plan and provide landscape screening where applicable. 
 

29. Given a variation has been requested to waive the photometric study, please indicate the location of any free-
standing exterior or building mounted lights on Lot 2, along with a catalog cut sheet/specifications. Please indicate 
the location of the existing exterior lights on Lot 1. 

 
Plat of Subdivision: 
 
30. Final Plat of Subdivision approval shall come at a future Plan Commission meeting, to be determined when final 

engineering and final plat documents have been provided. 
 

31. Chapter 29, Section 29-201.b.4 requires a location map be included on the Preliminary Plat of Subdivision. 
 

32. Chapter 29, Section 29-201.b.12 requires the building setback lines for each lot be shown on the Plat of 
Subdivision. 

 
  

Prepared by: ____________________________ 
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Chestnut Townhomes 

2201 N. Chestnut 

PC 23-011 

December 8, 2023 

 

Tree Preservation 

1. Please provide a tree survey that includes the size, species, condition and disposition for each 
tree.   

Landscape Comments 

1. Along Rand Road, restore the parkway with turf and parkway trees.  Please provide three 
additional shade trees where asphalt is shown.   
 

2. Provide a landscape island that includes a shade tree on the west end of the parking row that is 
located along Rand Road.   
 

3. Please provide a detail of the proposed fence shown on the site plan between the commercial 
and the proposed townhomes.  Per code, the fence must be solid and six feet high.   
 

4. Please indicate quantities and sizes on the planting plan. The trees at the ends of the parking 
row must be four-inch caliper in size. 
 

5. Provide foundation plantings on the south elevation of the townhomes.  
 

6. Please evaluate the placement of the drive aisle for the townhomes.  It is recommended that 
the drive be placed further from the single-family residence to allow for a dense layered buffer 
that consists of evergreens.     
 

7. Landscape screening must be provided for any utility/mechanical areas. Any new 
utility/mechanical boxes must be placed where they are not visible and screened.   
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